2001

Kelly Gates, Sr v. Utah Labor Commission and George M. Anderson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION OF APPELLATE COURT

The Court of Appeals has jurisdiction in this matter pursuant to §63-46b-14 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, which provides that “(1) a party aggrieved may obtain judicial review of final agency action, except in actions where judicial review is expressly prohibited by statute.”

Section 63-46b-16(1) provides “as provided by statute, the Supreme Court or the Court of Appeals has jurisdiction to review all agency action resulting from formal adjudicative proceedings.” (Emphasis added.)

This action is before this Court on appeal from the Utah Labor Commission as a result of the Labor Commissioner having reversed the Findings and Order of the Administrative Law Judge who, after hearing the evidence, viewing witnesses, and hearing the testimony of witnesses issued his ruling in favor of the Appellant.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

A. Was Appellant substantially prejudiced by the Labor Commissioner who did not participate in the hearing, did not hear the testimony, did not observe the witnesses and with only a cold transcript before him, reversed the Findings of Fact, and Conclusions of Law and Order the Administrative Judge who had heard the case, observed the witnesses, and reviewed the evidence?

B. Did the Labor Commissioner go against the clear weight of the evidence supporting the Administrative Judge’s Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and make his ruling, reversing the Findings of Fact of the Administrative Judge, without the support of substantial

evidence to do so as required by §63-46b-16(4)(g) and (h)(iv) of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, and contrary to the weight of the evidence?

C. Was the Findings and Order of the Labor Commissioner an abuse of discretion delegated to the agency by statute?

D. Was the actions of the Labor Commissioner, in reversing the Administrative Judge, arbitrary or capricious?

The standard of review is defined by Utah Code Annotated, 1953 as amended in §63-46b-16(4) which states that “the appellate court shall grant relief only if, on the basis of the agency’s record, it determines that a person seeking judicial review has been substantially prejudiced by any of the following (emphasis added):

.

(g) The agency action is based upon determination of fact, made or implied by the agency, that is not supported by substantial evidence when viewed in light of the whole record, before the court;

(h) the agency action is:

.

(iv) otherwise arbitrary or capricious. (Emphasis added.)

CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES, STATUTES, ORDINANCES, OR RULES

Section 34A-2-103(7)(b):

(b) Any person who is engaged in constructing, improving, repairing, or remodeling a resident that the person owns or is in the process of acquiring as the person’s personal residence may not be considered an employee or employer solely by operation of Subsection (7)(a).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Nature of the Case.

A. George M. Anderson was employed by Kelly Gates II to do some framing work on the said Kelly Gates II's residence under construction in Diamond Valley, Washington County, State of Utah.

B. While working, George M. Anderson, in the process of breaking a metal band around a bundle of plywood panels, was injured.

C. Kelly Gates II, the owner of the home, who was a young married man was building or contracting the construction of his own home, and was employed himself, so could only be at the construction site on a limited, part time basis. As a result he enlisted his father Kelly Gates Sr., Petitioner herein, without consideration, who was retired from his primary occupation as an automobile dealer, to assist him by watching over the construction of his home whenever possible.

D. Kelly L. Gates, II was exempt from the requirement of maintaining workman compensation insurance.

2. Course of Proceedings.

A. George M. Anderson filed a claim with the Labor Commission against Kelly Gates Sr.

B. Kelly Gates Sr. filed an answer to the claims with the Labor Commission.

C. A hearing was held before the Administrative Judge on July 1, 1999.

D. On January 19, 2001, the Administrative Judge issued his Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order in favor of Appellant.

E. On or about February 19, 2001, Respondent mailed his Motion for Review to the Labor Commission of Utah.

F. On June 28, 2001, Utah Labor Commission issued his Order reversing the Order of the Administrative Judge and remanding the case to the Administrative Judge for further proceedings consistent with his Order.

G. In Order to exhaust all administrative remedies, Appellant filed his Motion for Review with the Adjudicative Division of the Labor Commission of Utah on August 8, 2001.

H. The Appeals Board, on the grounds that it had no authority to review a decision of the Labor Commissioner, denied the Petition for Review on November 15, 2001.

I. Appellant's Petition for Review with this court was filed November 20, 2001.

J. On or about December 19, 2001, Appellee filed his Motion for Summary Disposition.

K. March 21, 2002, this Court denied the Motion for Summary Disposition.

STATEMENT OF RELATIVE FACTS

1. Kelly Gates II (hereinafter "Gates II") and his wife obtained a bank loan for the construction of a home in the Diamond Valley Subdivision in Washington County, State of Utah. (Tr. page 150, lines 10-24.)

2. At the time, Gates II and his wife decided that they could save money by doing the contracting themselves, rather than hire a contractor to build it for them. (Tr. page 150, line 25; page 151, lines 1-5.)

3. Kelly Gates, Sr. (hereinafter "Gates Sr.") the respondent herein, was and is the father of Gates II. (Tr. page 151, lines 14-17.)

4. Gates Sr. gave the lot upon which the residence was to be built to his son on the condition that the son build his home on the lot and live in it at least five years—the same offer and condition he offered his other children. (Tr. page 74, lines 12-16.)

5. Gates Sr. had been in the automobile business all of his professional life, but upon becoming semi-retired, had engaged in certain limited other business interests, such as becoming a partner in Diamond Valley Estates, building a condo complex in Santa Clara, and purchasing some storage units as well as building a spec home for sale in Diamond Valley. (Tr. page 20, lines 18-25; page 21, lines 1-17.)

6. Gates II worked a full time job from approximately 3:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. or 4:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. at a grocery store and supplemented his income by working afternoons as a salesman for an automobile dealership, so he could not be on site on a full time basis. However, Gates II's hours at the dealership were flexible and irregular enabling him to visit the site daily. (Tr. page 155, lines 22-25; page 156, lines 1-7.)

7. Gates II asked his father to assist him in the construction of his “home at Diamond Valley.” (Tr. page 151, lines 14-17)

8. Gates Sr. agreed, providing advice and some on site inspection assistance when Gates II was not able to be at the building site himself. (Tr. page 157, lines 2-12.)

9. George Anderson, the Petitioner, was hired to do some of the framing by Gates II upon the recommendation of his father who had used Anderson in constructing his own mountain cabin on Kolob Mountain earlier. (Tr. page 152, lines 5-15; page 153, lines 2-22.)

10. Gates Sr. had also used Anderson a small amount in remodeling some storage units, into offices, which he owned. (Tr. page 22, lines 4-10.)

11. Anderson, while working for Gates II on his house was injured, arguably, as a result of his own negligence. (Tr. page 37, lines 12-19.)

12. Anderson subsequently filed a claim against Gates Sr. claiming that Gates Sr. was the "contractor" on the job and that he was working for Gates Sr. not Gates II.

13. During his work on the Gates II home, Anderson constantly asked to be paid daily, or every two to three days, with the implied threat that if he did not get paid when he needed money he would quit. (Tr. page 157, lines 16-25; page 158, lines 1-7.)

14. Because Gates II could only get construction draws from the bank on his construction loan, every two weeks, and Gates II did not have the cash himself to pay Anderson so often, Gates II requested help from his father to make the payments, demanded by Anderson. (Tr. page 158, lines 8-14.)

15. In order to assist his son, Gates Sr. paid Anderson, and some of the other workers, out of his own pocket when such demands were made, but he was always reimbursed by his son when he, the son, was able to obtain draws on his construction loan from the bank. (Tr. page 158, lines 12-14; page 52, lines 16-19.)

16. Gates Sr. received no compensation, not even interest on the money he loaned his son for that purpose, or anything else which he did to assist his son. (Tr. page 158, lines 15-17; page 158 24-25.)

17. The Labor Commissioner concluded that Gates Sr. was a contractor on the job and hence subject to the requirement that he have Workman's Compensation Insurance, which, of course, he did not have.

18. Gates II was not required to have insurance, since he was building his own home, not subject to the Workman's Compensation laws. See § 34A-2-103(7)(b) Utah Code Annotated.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Kelly Gates II, and his young wife, obtained a construction loan to build his home on a lot in Diamond Valley in Washington County, Utah.

He and his wife decided they could build the home themselves, without the services of a general contractor, and save money.

Of course, Kelly Gates II was employed full time and he and his wife were not contractors by trade and they did not intend to physically build the house.

Kelly Gates II, looked to his father who was a semi-retired automobile dealer to advise and assist him because he had time to go to the construction site on a regular basis.

Kelly Gates II. was exempted from the requirements of the Utah Labor Code by §34A-2-103(7)(b) of Utah Code Annotated as amended, since he was constructing his and his wife's own, personal residence.

Respondent Anderson was injured while working on the home, and filed a claim against Kelly Gates Sr. the Appellant, alleging he was a contractor on the job and therefore, since it was not his house, he was not protected by §34A-2-103(7)(b) Utah Code Annotated, as amended.

The Appellant argues that he was simply the father of the owner of the home, assisting his son in whatever way he could, including advancing some funds on a short term basis, for which he received no compensation, and by observing the work as it progressed and reporting the results to his son, and doing other such things as any father would do for a son. All of those activities he did for no compensation whatever.

The Labor Commission, who did not see witnesses, observe them as they testified as the Administrative Judge was able to, reversed the Findings and Order of the Administrative Judge who had found in favor of the Appellant.

Because much of the evidence supporting the Respondent's position was his own testimony, hence his creditability has to be crucial to evaluating the case. But, even more significant was the testimony that the Commissioner apparently ignored, and still, even more important than that was, charitably, misunderstanding, misstating and misinterpreting evidence as it appeared in the written record.

Consequently, Appellant submits that he has been substantially prejudiced and that the Labor Commission's decision is not supported by the evidence, is arbitrary and capricious.

ARGUMENT

The Labor Commissioner, in revising the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law of the ALJ did so, upon a careful reading of his Order, based upon the premises that almost everything, if not everything Anderson said, “—was correct, truthful, and accurate—“ while, apparently, every bit of testimony from other witnesses that contradicted Anderson was not truthful.

Appellant acknowledges that the Commissioner had the authority and the power to reverse the Findings of the Administrative Judge, but due process demands there be a legally justifiable basis for such reversal.

While this proceeding was not in a normal court of law, the Labor Commissioner did list certain court cases in his Conclusions of Law which demonstrates that he must have felt there is some value in referring to the legal cases that have been issued by both the Supreme Court of Utah and the Utah Court of Appeals.

Consequently, it would be only logical that he also take guidance from certain other Supreme Court or Appeals Court decisions as well. The Appellant specifically refers to two cases, one by the Supreme Court of Utah, State of Utah v. Jose Carlos Pena, 865 P.2d 932, a 1994 case, and a very recent case out of the Utah Court of Appeals, State of Utah v. Visser, 31 P.3rd 584, 586 (Ut. App. 2001), both of which outline principles in some specificity, which are also enumerated in innumerable other cases, and that are almost so common place in Utah law as to hardly need repeating.

They are, State v. Jose Carlos Pena, supra, which states as follows:

Trial courts (the ALJ in this case) are given primary responsibility for making determinations of fact. Findings of Fact are revised by an Appellate Court (the Labor Commissioner in this case) under the clearly erroneous standard. For a review court to find clear error, it must decide that the factual findings made by the trial court are not adequately supported by the record, resolving all disputes in the evidence in the light most favorable to the trial court's determination (Citing case.) This standard is highly differential to the trial court because it is before that court that the witnesses and parties appear and the evidence is addressed. The judge of that court is therefore considered to be in the best position to assess the credibility of witnesses and to derive a sense of the proceeding as a whole, something an appellate court cannot hope to garner from a cold record. (Citation of the case.) (Emphasis added.)

State of Utah v. Visser, supra states as follows:

To the extent that findings of fact are based on a determination of credibility, we defer to the trial court. (Citation of case.) The trial court has the responsibility to determine the credibility of testimony. “A trial court’s factual findings [regarding defendant’s competency] will not be overturned unless they are clearly erroneous.” (Citation) We give deference to the trial court’s factual findings because of its superior position to assess credibility. (Emphasis added.)

While these are obviously criminal cases, the principal ennumerated when evaluating the credibility of witnesses applies here as in criminal cases. For example, in the instant case, most of the issues decided were decided almost exclusively on the basis of the credibility of the witnesses. The Respondent points out that in this case, the Labor Commissioner totally disregarded the observation by the ALJ that “Anderson lacks credibility.” See the final paragraph of the Findings of Fact made by the ALJ on page 5 thereof, and the ALJ noted that Anderson, was able to hear to the testimony of all other witnesses. The ALJ observed in this Findings that the opportunity for adaptive testimony was in Anderson’s hands and he fully utilized it. These are two very strong statements concerning the testimony of the Respondent Anderson.

The Labor Commissioner, on the otherhand, disregarded those findings when he states in the first paragraph of page 3 of his Order Granting Motion for Review, that “the commissioner finds such testimony (of Anderson) to be responsive, simple and straight-forward.”

It defies logic to determine how the commissioner can make that kind of determination, in the face of the ALJ’s determinations, when he never saw nor heard the Petitioner’s testimony, a conclusion which the Supreme Court of Utah states, an “appellate court cannot hope to garner from a cold record.” State v. Pena, supra.

It is even more difficult to understand, when the conclusions of the Commissioner, are refuted by considerable evidence in the record.

It is almost impossible in a relatively short brief to state all of the matters, in which the Respondent believes the Labor Commissioner made errors in his Order Granting the original Motion for Review in reading and interpreting the evidence, but a few will demonstrate, the Appellant believes, that the Labor Commissioner erred in revising the Order and the Findings of Fact of the ALJ, and that he acted arbitrarily and capriciously.

The Labor Commissioner in paragraph three of his Order states that Gates Sr. in the past owned an auto dealership and that he had formed another with his son Gates II under the business name of “Kelly Gates Enterprises.” This is the first of numerous misstatements of the record by the Labor Commissioner.

The facts are, that Kelly Gates Sr. and his son, Kelly Gates II opened an automobile dealership, not under the name of “Kelly Gates Enterprises,” which was Gate Sr. ’s own business, but under the name of “Sunland Sales and Leasing.” See Transcript, page 20, lines 20-25 and page 21, line 1.

While that is, of itself, not an important error made by the Labor Commissioner in attempting to usurp the role of fact finder, it portends the many other mistakes and errors he made in attempting to read a cold record and conjure up facts to support his decision.

It is significant to note, at this point, Anderson invoked the exclusion of witnesses rule which, of course, means that witnesses may not be in the court room and hear the testimony of other witnesses as they testify.

Anderson called, as his first witnesses, Gates Sr. which meant that Gates II and Seymour Hoskins, who were also subsequently called, were not in the courtroom and not able to hear the testimony of Gates Sr. However, the exclusion did not apply to Mr. Anderson, himself, as he was a party to the proceeding and hence able to be present during the testimony of all other witnesses.

It is also significant as mentioned above, that the ALJ found it important enough to mention again, after observing all witnesses over a five hour hearing, in the last full paragraphs of his Findings of Fact, page 4 of his written Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law the following:

“There is a question of credibility in this case, that is raised by the vastly different representations between Anderson’s testimony and all of the other witnesses. However, when Petitioner (Anderson) so ordered the testimony of Gates Sr. before his own, the opportunity for adaptive testimony was in Anderson’s hands and he fully utilized it. (Emphasis added.)

The Pena case, supra, pointed out, “the judge of that [the trial court] is therefore considered to be in the best position to assess the credibility of witnesses and to derive a sense of the proceeding as a whole, something the appellate court cannot hope to garner from a cold record.”

The Labor Commissioner made a point in the 3rd paragraph of his Findings of Fact of the fact that Gates II was only 22 years old and had little or no experience with building or construction, as if that should disqualify him from taking advantage of 34A-2-103(7)(b) Utah Code Annotated which allows one to build his own residence without being required to have Workman’s Compensation Insurance. That section does not require one to be an “experienced

builder” to take advantage of 34A-2-103(7)(b) and it does not preclude him from utilizing the assistance of his father and others to assist him. Gates II, obviously, would have to, and did rely upon numerous craftsmen and other experienced workers in the construction of his home.

The Labor Commissioner may have been attempting to set the stage for his later Findings in the 3rd paragraph on page 3, of the Order Granting the Motion for Review that “He (Anderson) did not see Junior at the building site until the project was well under way.”

And on page 4, first full paragraph, the Commissioner says “Junior was rarely present.” However, Gates Sr. testified, on page 45, line 2 after being asked by Anderson’s counsel if his son (Gates II) had met with Mike (Anderson) on the job site, “—oh many, many times.”

Gates II, who was not present to hear other witnesses testify, testified as follows when asked:

Q. Did you go up to the house as often as you could?

A. Every night.

Q. And that was every night that you’d go up to the house, is that right?

A. Uh huh.

Q. And whom did you talk with when you went up to the house?

A. Anyone who had been involved in the house, any of the workers and dad and anyone else.

Q. Would—Had—Would you talk with Mr. Anderson?

A. Every night.

Q. Every night that you went up there?

A. Uh huh.

Q. Was he there every day?

A. No. It wasn’t every day, there were a lot of days he just didn’t show up, but for the most part—for that time—in that time frame, I think it was pretty consecutive.

Q. Okay. Did you—When you talked to him, did you tell him what you wanted done or what you didn’t want done or give him any kind of instructions as to the progress of the building?

A. Uh huh, yeah, yes.

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