2001

Kelly Gates, SR., v. Utah Labor Commission and George M. Anderson : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

In his brief, Gates fails to marshal any of the Labor Commission’s findings against him, any of the documentary evidence received at the hearing against him, or any of the testimony against him. Further, Gates’ brief fails to comply with Rule 24 as it provides no legal analysis relative to the issues set forth in the brief, contains no addendum containing the orders which have been issued by the Labor Commission, cites inappropriately to the record and the law, does not indicate where the issues were preserved in the Administrative agency and misrepresents the evidence. Hence, the appeal should be summarily dismissed.

Secondly, the evidence when marshaled is substantial and supports the findings of the Labor Commission in awarding workers’ compensation benefits to Anderson in this case.

Finally, Gates' brief is frivolous, misstates the facts and misstates the law. As such, an award of attorneys fees and costs should issue.

ARGUMENT

I

GATES' BRIEF SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED BY THIS COURT

On appeal, “[a] reviewing court is entitled to have the issues clearly defined with pertinent authority cited and is not simply a depository in which the appealing party may dump the burden of argument and research.” *State v. Bishop*, 753 P.2d 439, 450 (Utah 1988) (quoting *Williamson v. Opsahl*, 92 Ill. App. 3d 1087, 416 N.E.2d 783, 784 (Ill. App. Ct. 1981)) (other citations omitted). Here, Gates' brief is inadequate for numerous reasons.

A. GATES HAS FAILED TO MARSHAL ANY OF THE EVIDENCE AGAINST HIM

In setting forth his issues, it is apparent Gates is not satisfied with the findings of fact of the Labor Commission. However, he does not indicate which of those findings he disputes, let alone marshal any of the evidence which supports the Commission's findings. Proper marshaling of the evidence entails marshaling, or listing all of the evidence supporting any challenged finding. See, e.g. *State Ex Rel. T. J.*, 945 P.2d 158, 164 (Utah Ct. App. 1997); *En Re Estate of Hamilton*, 869 P.2d 971, 977 (Utah Ct. App. 1994). It is inappropriate for an appellant to marshal the evidence of carefully selected

facts and excerpts of testimony in support of his own position, conveniently leaving out facts which are negative to his case. See, e.g., *Valcarce v. Fitzgerald*, 961 P.2d 305, 312 (Utah 1998); *Johnson v. Higley*, 977 P.2d 1209, 1218 (Utah Ct. App. 1999).

Additionally, it is not proper to incorrectly state marshaled “facts” in an attempt to improve ones position on appeal. See, e.g. *State v. Pilling*, 875 P.2d 604, 608 (Utah Ct. App. 1994); *Johnson v. Board of Review of the Indus. Comm’n*, 842 P.2d 910, 912 (Utah Ct. App. 1992).

Once the evidence has been marshaled with appropriate citations to the record pursuant to Utah R. App. P. 24(e), the appellant must then show that the marshaled evidence is legally insufficient to support the findings of the trier of fact when viewing the evidence and inferences in a light most favorable to the decision. See, *Child v. Gonda*, 972 P.2d 425, 433 (Utah 1998). If an appellant fails to properly marshal the evidence, the appellate court must presume the findings to be correct. See, *Valcarce v. Fitzgerald*, 961 P.2d 305, 312 (Utah 1988).

In his brief, Gates sets forth four issues claiming that he has been substantially prejudiced by the findings of the Labor Commission. (See Brief of Gates at pages 1-2). Gates then goes on and sets forth a statement of relative [sic] facts wherein he makes absolutely no reference to the 16 paragraphs of findings made by the Labor Commissioner. (R2 at 410-3; See also Addendum “E” at pages 1-4). These findings of the Commission are significant. For example, the Commission found:

1. Anderson’s testimony was “responsive, simple, and straight-forward.” (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).

2. The testimony of Gates, Sr. and Gates, Jr. is “equivocal and inconsistent.” (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
3. Gates, Sr. sought to commit fraud. (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
4. Gates, Jr. submitted false information to his construction lender. (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
5. Gates, Jr., the purported employer of Anderson, did not know Anderson’s wage rate. (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
6. Gates, Sr. did know Anderson’s wage rate. (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
7. Gates, Sr.’s crew that worked at the Diamond Valley project also worked to remodel his storage units. (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
8. Gates, Sr. provided large equipment to do the Diamond Valley work such as a compressor and air-driver nail guns. Gates, Jr. provided no equipment or tools. (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
9. All of Anderson’s wages were paid out of Gates, Sr.’s Kelly Gates Enterprises checking account. (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
10. Gates, Sr. co-mingled payments to Anderson for work on the Diamond Valley and remodeling projects. (R2 at 412; See also, Addendum “E” at 3).
11. Gates, Jr. never made any direct payment to Anderson, but he did make payment to Gates, Sr. (R2 at 412-13; See also, Addendum “E” at 3-4).
12. Anderson always looked to Gates, Sr., not junior, for wage payment. (R2 at 413; See also, Addendum “E” at 4).
13. Gates, Sr. was on the job site on a daily basis. Gates, Jr. was there rarely. (R2 at 413; See also, Addendum “E” at 4).
14. Gates, Sr. exercised control over Anderson. (R2 at 413; See also, Addendum “E” at 4).
15. After Anderson was hurt, Gates, Sr. transferred \$1,000 to his son, his son

then paid the \$1,000 to Anderson from the son's personal account. This was intended to create some evidence that Gates, Jr. was Anderson's employer. (R2 at 413; See also, Addendum "E" at 4).

In addition to failing to cite to the Commission's findings, Gates, Sr. fails to cite to any of the unfavorable documentary evidence against him, such as the checks which were written to Anderson on Gates, Sr.'s Kelly Gates Enterprises' account. He likewise fails to refer to the physician's first report of injury wherein Anderson tells his treating physician that he worked for Gates Enterprises. Further, Gates entirely fails to refer to all of the testimony which preponderates against him, such as:

- a. Gates' attorney asked Gates whether the money he paid Anderson for work on the Diamond Valley home included any hours he worked on Gates, Sr.'s office building. Gates, Sr. answered, "No. No. Absolutely not." (R3 at 138-9). Gates, Sr. further indicated that it would have been highly improper to include anything but work that was done on the house. (R3 at 139). However, on cross examination, when confronted with the "doctored" records from State Bank of Southern Utah (R1 at 196-7), Gates, Sr. admitted that the checks which were paid to Anderson must have been a "partial payment on the - - on the rentals out here or - - something he done on Kolob." (R3 at 146).
- b. Upon prompting from his counsel, Gates, Sr. indicated that Anderson preferred to be paid in cash. (R3 at 79). Over objection of Anderson's counsel, Gates, Sr. testified that the reason Anderson wanted to be paid in cash was for "tax purposes". (R3 at 80). However, on cross-examination, Gates, Sr. admitted that Anderson was paid entirely by check, not cash, for the work he did on the Diamond Valley project. (R3 at 90-1).
- c. Gates, Sr., in an attempt to show Gates, Jr. was Anderson's boss, testified that he was present during a conversation wherein Gates, Jr. hired Anderson. This apparently took place over the phone. Gates, Sr. testified, "I do not recall, but I'm going to say it was over the telephone." (R3 at 42), leaving one to speculate how it is that Gates, Sr., Gates, Jr., and Mr. Anderson could converse simultaneously

over the phone.

- d. In order to explain why Anderson was paid on Gates, Sr.'s business account, Gates, Sr., testified that Anderson was requesting money at least every other day and it was not possible to get a draw from the construction loan more than once every two weeks. (R3 at 46). However, all the other framers working on the Diamond Valley home, Bret Rasmussen, Brad Cook, Mike Schurtz, and Travis Whitsnitzer were all paid out of Kelly L. Gates Enterprises account, as well. (R3 at 52).
- e. When initially questioned regarding who signed for the building permit on the Diamond Valley home, Gates, Sr. indicated that he could not recall who had applied for the building permit, but that he assumed his son had done so. (R3 at 61). However, when actually presented with a copy of the building permit, Gates, Sr. indicated that it was his signature on the building permit. (R3 at 61). Having previously testified that he could not recall who had applied for the building permit, Gates, Sr. had miraculous recall and was able to testify that the reason his son did not apply for the building permit was because "he couldn't get off work to go in and get it." (R3 at 85).
- f. Gates, Sr. testified that after Anderson's injury, Gates, Sr. loaned his son, Gates, Jr. \$1,000 to loan Anderson to help Anderson out. That check was written on Gates, Sr.'s account then, Gates, Jr. wrote a check to Anderson from Gates, Jr.'s own account. (R3 at 63). Gates, Sr. initially testified that it was his son who had delivered the check to Anderson, indicating that, "I'm assuming he gave it to Mike, the money." (R3 at 71). However, on further examination, Gates, Sr. admitted that it was actually Gates, Sr. who delivered the \$1,000 check to Anderson because the doctors "wouldn't work on him until we could get him - - he could present some money to them." (R3 at 72).

These facts which were not marshaled, nor even attempted to be marshaled by Gates, show that the determination of the labor Commissioner that Gates, Sr. was Anderson's employer, was supported by the record. The failure to marshal these facts,

pursuant to the above referenced authority, is fatal and Gates, Sr.'s appeal should be summarily dismissed.

B. GATES, SR.'S BRIEF FAILS TO COMPLY WITH RULE 24

Briefs which are not in compliance with Rule 24 can be stricken or simply disregarded by the appellate court. U. R. App. P. 24(i); *SLW/UTAH, McKAY v. Hardy*, 973 P.2d 941, 948 (Utah 1998). Gates, Sr.'s brief, in addition to failing to marshal evidence fails for a number of reasons.

Rule 24(a)(5)(A) requires that a brief "cite to the record showing that the issue was preserved in the trial court"; or (B) "a statement of grounds for seeking review of an issue not preserved in the trial court." In this situation, Gates has done neither. He sets forth four issues but makes no attempt to indicate where those issues were preserved in the administrative agency, or whether they were required to be preserved. (See brief of Gates at 1-2). It is inappropriate for a party to simply "dump the burden of argument and research" on the other party. See, *State v. Larsen*, 828 P.2d 487, 491 (Utah Ct. App. 1992) (quoting *Williamson v. Opsahl*, 416 N.E. 2d 783, 784 (Ill. App. Ct. 1981)).

Additionally, the brief fails to contain an argument setting forth the contentions and reasons of Gates with respect to the issues presented as required pursuant to Rule 24(a)(9). In his brief, Gates identifies, or attempts to identify four separate issues. (See brief of Gates at pages 1-2). After setting forth those issues, they are never addressed anywhere in the entire body of the brief. Then, Gates appears to reargue the same case

that he argued in front of the Labor Commissioner providing little, if any, legal analysis. It is not proper to try to reargue the same case which was argued before the trial court. See, e.g. *Butler, Crockett and Walsh Dev. Corp. v. Pinecrest Pipeline Operating Co.*, 909 P.2d 225, 236 (Utah 1995); *Moon v. Moon*, 973 P.2d 431, 437 (Utah Ct. App. 1999).

Further, the authority cited by Gates is irrelevant. In a case appealed from an administrative agency, Gates cites two criminal cases that allegedly support his position; *State v. Pena*, 869 P.2d 932 (Utah 1994) and *State v. Visser*, 31 P.3d 584 (Utah Ct. App. 2001). Not only are *Pena* and *Visser* irrelevant to an administrative proceeding, the citation to those cases is inappropriate. At page nine of his brief, Gates portends to quote from *Pena*, but the only citations for the case are indicated as, “(citing case)” and “(citation of the case)”. In similar fashion, in quoting the *Visser* case at page ten of the brief, Gates indicates, “(citation of case)” . . . “(citation)”. One would think that if these two cases were so important Gates could at least find the cites located within the body of the cases and inform the Court and counsel as to where it is he is purportedly quoting.

It is well settled that “[t]he brief of appellant should contain the points relied upon. . . and these points should be supported by authorities. . . If the questions involved in a case are of sufficient importance to justify asking the Court to decide them, they are worthy of careful consideration of counsel presenting them. . . It is the duty of attorneys practicing in this Court to present to the Court the authorities supporting their views and to assist the Court in reaching a correct conclusion.” *State v. Thomas*, 974 P.2d 269, 272 (Utah 1999) (quoting *En Re Estate of Kunz*, 7 Ill. App. 3d 760, 288 N.E. 2d 520, 523 (Ill.

App. Ct. 1972).

Gates, Sr.'s failure to appropriately cite to legal authority is surpassed only by his inability to cite to the record. In his statement of facts, Gates does attempt to cite to the record, with the exception of paragraph 18 which is obviously a legal conclusion.¹

A sampling of the failure to cite to the record is indicated in the following selections from Gates' brief:

- a. "Gates, Sr. also built condos in Santa Clara using a contractor. Those facts are rather important evidence in determining whether Gates, Sr. would act as a contractor on the construction of his son's own home." (See brief of Gates at page 23).
- b. "The fact is, Gates provided only a compressor driven nail gun and the compressor, to operate it, after the construction was well underway, in order to accelerate the work Anderson was doing for the express purpose of saving his son money. That was the only 'large equipment' he provided." (See brief of Gates at page 23).
- c. "Perhaps, the last issue of significance is the Commissioner's finding that it was Gates, Sr. who 'hired' Anderson to do the work on Gates, II's house in Diamond Valley. He based that determination almost entirely on the testimony of Anderson who virtually denied ever meeting Gates II until several weeks after he started the project." (See brief of Gates at page 26-7).
- d. "Gates Sr. himself was not experienced as a contractor or builder. He had worked in the automobile business all of his professional life. He loaned money to his son to pay the demands of Anderson and other workers until Gates II could get a bi-weekly draw on his construction loan to keep workers on the job, and he helped out however he could, but he was not a contractor and received no compensation or payment for assisting his son, except for the satisfaction of helping a son. He did not serve as a contractor in building his son's home." (See brief of Gates at page 28).

¹Paragraph 18 of the Statement of Relative [sic] Facts found at page seven reads, "Gates II was not required to have insurance, since he was building his own home, not subject to the workman's compensation laws. See §34A-2-103(7)(b) Utah Code Annotated.

- e. “Gates, Sr. spent time watching the workers, but acted only on the instructions of his son in directing those workers.” (See brief of Gates at page 29).

These references contain no cite to the record. Likewise, they don’t refer back to anything that is cited in the Statement of Relative [sic] Facts. It is almost impossible to defend against allegations contained in a brief when there is no admissible evidence cited.

C. GATES, SR. HAS MISREPRESENTED THE EVIDENCE TO THE COURT

In his attempt to undermine the findings of the Labor Commissioner, Gates alleges, “[i]t is almost impossible in a relatively short brief to state all of the matters, in which the respondent [sic] believes the Labor Commissioner made errors in his order Granting [sic] the original motion for review in reading and interpreting the evidence, but a few will demonstrate, the appellant believes, that the Labor Commissioner erred in revising the order and the findings of fact of the ALJ, and that he acted arbitrarily and capriciously.” (See brief of Gates at page 11).

Indeed, if there are multiple factual errors on the part of the Labor Commissioner, one would presume that Gates, Sr. would identify the most egregious error of the Labor Commissioner and point it out to this Court. However, he is not able to do so and instead fabricates an “error”. Gates argues as follows:

“The Labor Commissioner in paragraph three of his Order states that Gates, Sr. in the past owned an auto dealership and that he had formed another with his son, Gates II under the business name of ‘Kelly Gates Enterprises.’ This is the first of numerous misstatements of the record by the Labor Commissioner. The facts are, that Kelly Gates, Sr. and his son, Kelly Gates II opened an automobile dealership, not under the name of ‘Kelly Gates Enterprises’ which was Gates, Sr.’s own

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